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Bruce G. Luttrell, CPA, PC P.O. Box 2178 Stillwater, OK. 74076

Certified Public Accountant (405} 74531040

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the City Commission
City of Chandler, Oklahoma

Report on the Financial Statements

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type activities,
sach major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Chandler, Oklahoma, as of and for
the year ended June 30, 2013, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the
City’s basic financizl statements as listed in the table of contents,

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsibie for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express opinicns on these financial statements based on my audit. I conducted my audit
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Governmment Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General
of the United States. Those standards require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the ¢ffectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, I express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and apprépriate to provide a basis for my audit
opinions. :

Basis for Adverse Opinion on Chandler Community Development Trust Authority and Qualified Opinion
on Business-Type Activities

The financial statements referred to above do not include financial data for the Chandler Community
Development Trust Authority. Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require
financial data for the Chandler Community Development Trust Authority to be reported with the financial
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data of the City’s primary government unless the City also issues financial statements for the financia! reporting
entity that include the financial data for the Chandler Community Development Trust Authority. The City has
not issued such reporting entity financial statements. Because of this departure from accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America, the amount by which this departure would affect the assets,
liabilities, net position, revenues, and expenses of the business-type activities has not been determined.

Adverse Opinion

In my opinion, because of the significance of the matter described in the “Basis for Adverse Opinion on
Chandler Community Development Trust Authority and Qualified Opinion on Business-Type Activities”
paragraph, the financial statements referred to above do not present fairly the financial position of the Chandler
Community Development Trust Authority of the City of Chandler, Oklahoma, as of June 30, 2013, or the
changes in financial position or cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Qualified Opinion

In my opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in the “Basis for Adverse Opinjon on Chandler
Community Development Trust Authority and Qualified Opinion on Business-Type Activitiss” paragraph, the
financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
business-type activities of the City of Chandler, as of June 30, 2013, and the respective changes in financial
position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Unmodified Opinions

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, sach major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information
of the City of Chandier, Oklahoma, as of June 30, 2013, and the respective changes in financial position and,

where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s
Discussion and Analysis, on pages 4 through 14, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. I have applied certain limited
p;ocedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to my inquiries, the
basic financial statements, and other knowledge I obtained during my audit of the basic financial statements. I
dlo not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not
provide me with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Management has omitted the budgetary comparison information that accounting principles generally aceepted in
the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such missing
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting



Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial

statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. My opinion of the basic financial
statements is not affected by this missing information.

Other Information

My audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City of Chandler, Oklahoma’s basic financial statements, The combining nonmajor governmental
fund financial statements, on pages 57 and 58, and the schedule of grant funds, on pages 59 and 60, are
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The
schedule of expenditures of federal awards, on page 55, is presented for purposes of additional analysis as
required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, dudits of States, Local Governments, and
Non-Profit Organizations, and is also not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining nonmajor governmental fund financial statements, the schedule of grant funds, and the schedule
of expenditures of federal awards are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements, Such
informaticn has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements
and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America. In my opinion, the combining nonmajor governmental fund financial
statements, the schedule of grant funds, and the schedufe of expenditures of federal awards are fairly stated in all
material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Aunditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, 1 have also issued my report dated October 14, 2014, on
my consideration of the City of Chandler, Oklahoma’s, internal control over financial reporting and on my tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters,
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of my testing of internal contro! over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government

Auditing Standards in considering the City of Chandler, Oklahoma’s, internal control over financial reporting
and compliance.

/o

Bruce Luttrell, CPA, PC

October 14, 2014



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Our discussion and analysis of the City of Chandler’s financial performance provides an overview of the
City’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013. Please read it in conjunction with the
City’s financial statements, which begin on page 15.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

As we look at the 2013 financial reports, we must take into consideration that beginning in FY 2012 we are
no longer including the Chandler Community Development Trust Authority’s (CCDTA) financial
statements as part of our financials. Due to this fact, their net assets from FY 2011, in the amount of
$1,320,505, were removed from our books in FY 2012.

* City wide net assets had an overall increase of $1,308,963.95; representing a 9.12% increase with a
$818,603.57 or 7.33% increase in net assets for governmental activities and a $573,693.72 or 14.02%
increase in net assets for business-type activities.

* Overall Change in net assets increased by 32.6% an increase of $1,392,297,

* Overall capital assets increased by 19.7% over last year. Overall the City had $17.8 million in total net
capital assets as compared to $14.9 million last year. Governmental Activities had a total increase in capital
assets of $321,204.27 (4.06%) while business-type activities increased in the amount of $2,621,550
(37.49%)

* Governmental Fund Balance had a combined fund balance increase of 15.3% this year as compared to a
10.2% increase last year

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The Statement of Net Assets and the
Statement of Activities (on pages 15 and 16) provide information about the activities of the City as a whole
and present a longer-term view of the City’s finances. Fund financial statements start on page 17. For
governmental activities, these statements tell how these services were financed in the short term as well as
what remains for future spending. Fund financial statements also report the City’s operations in more detail
than the government-wide statements by providing information about the City’s most significant funds,

Reporting the City as a Whole

The financial statements for the City as a whole begin on page 15. One of the most important questions
asked about the City’s finances is, “Is the City as a whole better or worse as a result of the year’s
activities?” The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities report information about the City
as a whole and about its activities in a way that helps answer this question. These statements include a//
assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the accounting used by most
private-sector companies. All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless
of when cash 1s received or paid.



These two statements report the City’s ner assefs and changes in them. You can think of the City’s net
assefs — the difference between assets and liabilitics - as one way to measure the City’s financial health, or
financial position. Over time, increases or decreases in the City’s net assets are one indicator of whether its
Sinancial health is improving or deteriorating, You will also need to consider other non-financial factors;
however, such as changes in the City’s sales tax base and the condition of the City’s infrastructure, to
assess the overall health of the City.

In the statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities, we divide the City into two kinds of
activities:

* Governmental activities — Most of the City’s basic services are reported here; including police,
fire, ambulance, emergency management, code enforcement, municipal court, streets, library,
parks and recreation, golf, lake and cemetery as well as general administration. Sales and use
taxes, franchise fees, fire and ambulance run fees, golf and lake use fees, court fees and state
and federal grants finance most of these activities.

» DBusiness-type activities — The City’s water and sewer system and sanitation activities are
reported here. The City charges a fee to customers to help cover the cost of these services.

Reporting the City’s Most Significant Funds

Our analysis of the City’s major funds begins on page 17 with the fund financial statements which provide
detailed information about the most significant funds — not the city as a whole. The City’s two kinds of
funds — governmental and proprietary— use different accounting approaches.

e Governmental funds — Most of the City’s basic services are reported in the governmental funds,
which focus on how money flows into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end
that are available for spending. These funds are reported using an accounting method called
modified accrual accounting, which measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily
be converted to cash. The governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view of
the City’s general government operations and the basic services it provides. Governmental fund
information helps you determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be
spent in the near future to finance the City’s programs. We describe the relationship (or
differences) between governmental activities (reported in the Statement of Net Assets and the
Statement of Activities) and governmental fimds in reconciliation at the botiom of the fund
financial statements.

* Proprietary Funds — When the City charges its customers for the services it provides — whether
to outside customers or to other units of the City — these services are generally reported in
proprietary funds. Proprietary funds are reported in the same way that all activities are reported
in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities. In fact, the City’s enterprise fund
is the same as the business-type activities we report in the government-wide statements but
provides more detail and additional information, such as cash flows for the proprietary fund.



THE CITY AS A WHOLE

For the year ended June 30, 2013, net assets (the difference between asscts and liabilities) changed as follows:
Please note that Table 1 is a condensed financial comparison, The full statement of net assets is found on page 135.

Tablel
Net Assets
(In Thousands)

Governmental Business-type Total % of
Activities Activities Government Change

f.,c;uf,fem?nd_?_.thﬁf?“ets .o 30029 o 4,069.9 7766 L0885 42795 51584 - 20.54%

Total assets 114220 107022 191908

~ Other liabilities
U Total Habillgés

e Netassett e
Invested in capital

assots, not of rolated debt PSS

~ Restricted

2562

e lsgsaa

Assigned 1150 1253 L -

L2830

Total net assets $ 11,171.9 $ 11,990.5 $ 4,090.7 $ 4,664.4

$ 16,6549

Table 1 shows the change in net assets over the past year. It reflects an overall increase in net assets of
$1,308,963.95; representing a 9.12% increase with a $818,603.57 or 7.33% increase in net assets for governmental
activities and a $ 573,693.72 or 14.02% increase in net assets for business-type activities.

Table 1 also shows the changes in current and other assets (comprised mostly of cash and cash equivalents and
investments, and does not include capital assets) compared to last year. It reflects an overall increase in current and
other assets of $878,883.64 representing a 20.54% increase over last year. There was a substantial increase in
current assets for business-type $311,848.90 which represents a 40.15% increase as well as a decent (16.19%,
$567,034.74) increase in current assets for the governmental activities.
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Governmental
Activities

. Program Revenues :

L _Qharge_s_ for o
IR (o T R

- Itrest Expense.

. Mistellangons
o Ivesiment .

_Earnings o 3326

Total Revenues $4.000,634 % 4,563,307

L 3098

Table 2
Changes in Net Assets
City as a Whole
Revenues

Business-type
Activities

L835106 1,843,245

L 2311.989

Total
Government

0/0 of
Change

s

2,628,167

Lagsar O L R T Y R

9,126

$ 1,667,917 $ 1,700,201

7

9119

o 12,452

12,817 2.93Y

$5,668,551 $ 6,263,508 10.50%



Table 2
Changes in Net Assets
City as a Whole
Expenses

Governmental ~ Business-type Total % of
Activities Activities Government Chang

Expenses

General Governmen

272269 339351320069 33480 50338 6G2gl

. PublicSafety  L714263 18ssse4 1855564 82Y

Stees 36002 300089

2 Reereation

CeiCemeteey s e TOBIR T RS IAR s s D T e 0I8 3513

CornmumtyEevelp i 285420 1935792 28,420 . 1935732

i Totul Bxpensess 0 $3 12753 $31486,965 0 1,564,302 o UBATS6055 LS RES19 0 TAY

B e Bney) T b T L TR e B
 before tramsfers - 878881  1,076342 3614 4

CAGSARE 257739 . - 6B2909 832046 L L6TA2E L8 2TAS0T

O NetAssets o - o B4I3400 SEIBG03 . 636,523 . BSVR603 | $L049023 . SL3396  3%6Y




Revenue Sources Expenses
City as a Whole City as a Whole

(By category)

@Charges for Services
B Capltal Outlay

BGrants mDebt Service

DMatsrlale & Supplles
HTaxes
i

A0ther Svee & Chys

GFranchise Fees

MPersonal Sve

MOther ®Transfors

Table 2 is a summary of the changes in net assets. The full statement of the changes in net assets is found on page
16.

You will notice that the change in net assets increased by 32.6%. In 2010 the net assets increased by $775,449
while in 2011 they increased by $1,362,898, and in 2012 the net assets increased by $1,049,923, In 2013 net assets
increased by $1,392,297. It is important to remember here that the change in net assets measures how much the net
assets changed this year in relation to how much they changed last year. You can see that net assets increased more

in 2013 than they have since we have been analyzing these changes. Again, in 2013 there was still a substantial
increase in net assets.

As we take a closer look at the revenues, we see that overall, they increased by 10.5% (from $5,668,551 to
$6,585,508). The most significant increase was in capital grants and miscellaneous income, which cannot be
predicted from year to year. There only a few unfavorable changes in revenues; tobacco tax, which decreased by
8.72% while sales tax continued to increase with a 2.67% increase ($70,891) compared to a 7.43% increase in 2012
and a 4% increase in 2011. Charges for services, which include fees for water, wastewater, sanitation, lake, golf]
court, etc, increased overall by $116,179 (4.62%). Operating grants and franchise fees were the only other
unfavorable changes in revenue with decreases of 8.34% and 10.41% respectively.

Taking a closer look at the expenses, we see that the largest increase was 224.8% or § 24,320, in the cemetery due
to the addition of the cemetery fence, the other large increase (599.2% or $170,282) is in Community Development
for the Industrial Park building which correlates directly with the receipt of a capital grant. Public safety increased
by 8.2% which was down from the 15.3% increase last year while administration increased by 11.9% and Culture
and Recreation decreased by approximately 9.6%. There was an overall increase in expenses of 7.5%.



GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

To aid in the understanding of the Statement of Activities on page 16, pay particular attention to the format. You
will notice that expenses are listed in the first column with revenues from that particular program reported directly
to the right. The result is a Net (Expense)/Revenue. This kind of format highlights the relative financial burden of
each function on the City’s taxpayers. It identifies how much each function requires from the general revenues or if
it is self-financing through fees and grants or donations. Some of the individual line item revenues reported for each
function are:

General government Building permits, canvassing permits, oversize permits,
copy/fax fees and dog licenses

Public Safety Fire runs, ambulance runs, court fines and costs
Culture & Recreation Library fines and operating grants, lake and golf use fees
All other revenues are reported as general, Tt is important to note that all taxes are classified as general revenue

even if restricted for a specific purpose.

For the year ended June 30, 2013, the City’s governmental activities were funded as follows:

Table 3
Net Cost of City of Chandler Governmental Activities
; Pen‘sentage R pementagg

Total Costof Net Costof

_, Services ... Serviees . Lhange

(82%  (1,168,525) (1,184,265) = 1.3%

JArport L M6066 109429 -5.7%  (6558)  (82,285) | 1154.7%

- 777.7%

TOTAL $ 3,121,753 $3,486,965 11.7% $ (2,252,075) ${2,287,687) 1.6%
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Sources of Funds for Governmental Activities

W Sales & Use Tax

m| Franchise

8 Chgs for Svcs

M Grants

W Other

Uses of Funds in Governmental Activities

B 6%

B 16% ® General

W Public Safety

# Streets

® Airport

# Culture & Recreaticn
W 53% B Cemetery

# Comm Dev




BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES

As you will notice on the Statement of Activities report on page 16 and the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and
Changes in Net Position, Proprietary Funds on page 21 the net operating income for the enterprise fund for this
year was $184,691.19 up 2% from last year's $181,914. This resulted from a small 2% increase in revenue and a
10% decrease in expenses from last year., As we saw in Table 1, the net assets for Business-type Activities
increased by 14%.

The City’s primary business-type activities are the sale of water, wastewater and sanitation services. These services
are carried out by the water plant, the wastewater plant, the distribution department (responsible for all water and
sewer lines) and administration. The City currently contracts out sanitation collection.

Sources of Funds for Business-Type Activities

® Water Sales

® Waste Water Sales

® Sanitation Sales

¥ Grants

% Other

Uses of Funds in Business-Type Activities

™ 20% M Water Plant

M Waste Water Plant
@ Distribution
W 14% M Sanitation

M Administration
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THE CITY’S FUNDS

This section discusses and analyzes the significant differences in the City’s governmental funds balance sheet,
Since we have already examined the changes in net assets in Table 1 and the changes in revenue and expense in
Table 2, we will concentrate here on the fund balances. In 2012 GASB began requiring significant changes to the
way fund balance is reported. We now report the fund balance divided into five different classifications which are
completely different than in years prior to 2012, The new classifications (further defined in footnote 1.D.) are:
nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned and unassigned. These classifications are based primarily on the
extent to which the city is bound to observe constraints imposed on the use of the resources.

Table 4
Fund Balances
Governmental Funds

(In Thousands)
~ GeneralFund  Airport  Other GovllFunds ~  TOTAL =
o012 2013 0 2012 2013 2012 2013 Chang

“Refrisled CUEmT e emes ey

Sl
Committed - - o - 2358808 2,833,749 2,358,898 2,833,749
Unassigned 736,203 761,214 - - 736,203 761214 3.4Y

U

023 135302 2470180 2 303883 S708330

Table 4 shows a combined fund balance increase of 15.3% this year as compared to a 10.2%
increase last year. It is important to note that these figures do not include the reconciling items
necessary to calculate net assets.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Over the course of the year, the City Council revised the City budget several times by approving
budget amendments. Budget amendments fall into one of three categories. The first category
includes supplemental appropriations which actually increase the total budget amount. This would
be done either to reflect the actual beginning balances or to increase the budgeted appropriations due
to increased expenses or to reflect grants and/or donations received. The second category includes a
decrease in appropriations which would be necessary if the actual revenues appeared to be
insufficient to meet the amounts appropriated. Luckily, we did not have to deal with that type of
situation. The third category includes transfers of appropriations from one line item, department or
fund to another. In 2013 the actual appropriations (expenditures) were $1,813,418 below the final
budget amounts. This was due in part to various capital outiay accounts which had remaining

Additionally, 2013’s All Funds Budget Summary included $2,759,000 for reserves. Combine that

with the 15% of budgeted monies that weren’t expended, and overall the City as a whole ended the
year in an excellent budgetary position.

13



CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION
Capital Assets

At the end of 2013, the City had $17.8 million in total net capital assets as compared to $14.9 million
last year. This includes a broad range of capital assets, including police and fire equipment,
buildings, park and library facilities, golf and lake facilities, roads and water and sewer
infrastructure; reflecting a 19.7% increase over last year.

Overall the Total Government had an increase to capital assets (net of depreciation) of 6.0% or
$672,765.03; the Governmental Activities had an increase of $321,204.27 or 4.06% as compared to
1.14% last year. Additions to Governmental Activitics capital assets include $3,900 - fairway
sprayer, $5,692 - monitor and cart, $3,500 - heart monitor, $87,160 - swimming pool repairs,
$11,475 - swimming pool filter, $15,000 - dump truck, $5,551- airport laser level, $8,000 - copier,
$35,939 - police car, $28,600 -ambulance lease payments, $21,000 - fire engine lease payments,
$22,580 - SCBA air packs, $2,462 - fire radios, $24,222 - Ambulance Unit #110, $8,770 - Toro
Workman mower, $31,290 - Lake maintenance building, $14,988 - tank culvert, $3,790 - cemetery
fencing, $354,707 - Industrial Park building, $12,536 - repeater tower, $3000 - senior citizen
carpeting, $7,483 - document imaging software

The business-type activities had a substantial increase in capital assets in the amount of $2,621,550
(37.49%) compared to $365,000 (2.5%) last year. Additions include $43,000 - skid steer, $58,392 -
water tank maintenance, $5,000 - pump jacking, $16,962 -miscellaneous equipment, $31,695 -
valves, $12,994 - bar screen repair, $7,492 - pump repair, $1,902,381 - water line improvements,
$968,105 - waste water improvements.

Debt

At year end, the City as a whole had $5,899,538 in outstanding notes compared to $3,462,882 last
year representing an increase of $2,436,484 (70.36%) again due to the water and waste water system

improvements. Other obligations of the City as a whole include accrued compensated absences
($12,390) and refundable deposits ($67,800).

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGETS AND RATES

The 2013-14 operating budget was determined based upon last year’s revenue and expenses. We
budgeted conservatively on sales tax revenue as well as on charges for services; i.e. water,
wastewater and sanitation. The budget includes monies for fire and ambulance lease payments, a
new police vehicle, Fire Station renovation and ambulance equipment, street overlays, a top dress
mower for the golf course, pool rehabilitation, water tank maintenance, and a new pickup.

CONTACTING THE CITY’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers and creditors with a
general overview of the City’s finances and to show the City’s accountability for the money it
receives. If you have any questions about this report or need additional information, please contact
Chandler City Hall. We can be contacted by phone at (405) 258-3200, in person at 414 Manvel Ave,
Chandler, Oklahoma or by mail at 414 Manvel Ave, Chandler, Oklahoma 74834,

14
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CITY OF CHANDLER
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2013

Statement 1

Government Business-Type
Activities Aclivities Totals
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 503,457.48 $ 680,312.87 $ 1,183,780.35
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 3,033,708.03 178,129.31 3,211,837.34
Accounts receivable 532,697.07 230,033.43 762,730.50
Accrued interest receivable 16.55 5.92 22.47
Total current assets 4.069,889.13 1,088,481.53 5,1568,370.66
Noncurrent assets
Capital assets:
Equipment and vehicles 3,215,580,25 872,733.35 4,088,323.80
Land and improvements 3,208,586.33 21,361.25 3,229,937.58
Buildings 1,799,782.22 2,824,336.38 4,624,121.60
Infrasfructure 3.004,652.25 8,491,372.84 11,496,025.09
Less accumulated depreciation (2,888,352,04) {2,596,060.05) (5,684,412.08)
Total nencurrent assets 8,240,259.01 9,613,736.77 17,853,995.78

Total assets

Liabilites
Current liabilities
Accolnis payable 120,128.59 (361.52) 119,767.07
Accrued interest payable 68,410.33 58,410.33
Accrued compensated absences 33,747.82 10,244.78 43,992.58
Notes payable - current portion 530,000.00 +530,000.00
Total current liabilities 153,876.41 598,293.57 752,169.98
Noncurrent [iabilities
Accruad compensated absences 14,383.38 2,145.47 16,528.85
Refundable deposits 87,800.00 67,800.00
Capital lease obligations 151,420.84 151,420.84
Notes payable 5,899,538.48 5,899,5638.48
Less: current portion (530,000,00) (530,000.00)
Total noncurrent liabilities 165,804.22 5,438,483.95 5,605,288.17
Total liabilities 319,680.83 6,037,777 .52 B6,357,458.15
Net position {Note 1.D.)
invested in capital asssts, net of related debt 8,240,259.01 3,714,198.29 11,954,457 .30
Restricted 78,074.45 178,129.31 256,203.76
Committed 2,833,748.91 2,833,748.91
Assigned 125,301.95 125,301.95
Unassigned 713,083.19 772,113.18 1,485,196.37

Total net position

12,310,148.14

10,702,218.30

23,012,366.44

$ 11,990,467.51

$ 4,664,440.78

$ 16,654,908.29

The accompanying notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF CHANDLER

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Statement 4
Other Toetal
General Airport CMA Cap Water Cap . Governmental  Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds
Revenues:
Sales tax $ 122779594 § 6821091 § 68210894 § 68210894 $§ 6821091 $2,728,43554
Use tax 105,362.33 105,362.33
Cigarette tax 35,151.09 35,151.09
Intergovernmental 60,664,39 60,664.39
Franchise fees 161,476.75 161,476.75
Grants 414,356.03 414,356.03
Charges for services 683,634.22 6883,634.22
Cemeatery 12,009.47 12,009.47
Fines 62,134.00 62,134.00
Miscellaneous 267,525.32 27 144.55 1,715.53 296,385.40
Investment income 3,279.28 418.44 3,697.72
Total revenues 2,892 875.40 95,355.46 682,108.94 682,108.94 210,858.30 4 563,307.04
Expenditures:
General government;
General government 631,089.94 3,382.01 634,471.95
Cemetery 35,137.80 35,137.80
Fublic safety:
Folice 628,020.14 35,938.63 663,958.77
Fire 665,894.09 47,840.66 713,734.75
Ambulance 210,993.43 53,98276 264,976.19
Emergency Management 1,616.75 1,616.75
Code Enforcement 55,138.14 55,138,14
Court 85,527.76 65,527.76
Streets 284,887.98 47,000.00 331,887.98
Culture and recreation:
Parks and recreaticn 196,831.62 196,831.62
Lake 178,351.54 30,000.00 206,351.84
Golf 112,143.73 15,992.93 128,136.68
Library 103,070.58 103,070.58
Airport 85,076.44 85,076.44
Wastewater 12,9894.00 - 12,994.00
Water 76,638.01 108,070.03 - 185 708.04
Total expenditures paid 3,166,703.50 85,076.44 89,632.01 108,070.03 234,136.99 3,684 618,97
Excess of revenues collected over {under)
expenditures (273,828.10) 10,279.02 592,476.93 573,038.91 (23,278.69) 878,688.07
Other financing sources {uses)
Operating transfers in 250,000.00 - - - - 250,000.00
Operating transfer cut - (128,157.98) {537,054 .42} (3,790.00% (669,042.38)
Tetal other financing sources {uses) 250,000.00 - {128,197.98) (537,054.42) (3,790.00 {419,042.38)
Excess {deficlency) of revenues and other
resources over expenditures and other uses {23,828.10) 10,279.02 464,278.87 35,984 49 (27,068.69) 459,645.69
Fund balances, beginning of year 794,490,64 115,022 93 636,798.08 1,598,728.23 193,654.12 3,338,694.00
Fund balances, end of year $ 77066254 512530195 § 1101077.05 § 1,634,712.72 & 16658543  $3,798,339.60

The accompanying notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statemant.
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CITY OF CHANDLER
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Statement 4 (cont.)

Reconciliation of the change in fund balances: total governmental funds to the change
in net position of governmental activities:

Net change in fund balances: total governmental funds 459, 64568

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are
differant because:

Governmental funds report capital cutlays as expenditures while governmental
activities report depreciation expense {o allocate those expendituras over the life
of the assets:
Capital asset purchases capitalized 654,559.77
Depreciation {333,355.50)

Governmental funds report lease purchases as expenditures while governmental
activities report them as a reduction in long-term liabilities in the Statement
of Net Pcsition 45,141.07

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of
current financial rescurces and therefore are not reported as expenditures in
governmentat funds:
Change in accrued compensated absences (7,387.47)

Change in nat position of governmental astivities $ 818,60356

The accompanying notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement,
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CITY OF CHANDLER
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUND

JUNE 30, 2013

Statement 5
Municipal
Authority
Enterprise
Assets Fund
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 680,312.87
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 178,129.31
Accounts recaeivable 230,033.43
Accrued interest receivable 5.92
Total current assets 1,088,481.53
Noncurrent assets
Capital assets:
Equipment and vehicles §72,733.35
Land and improvements 21,351.25
Buildings 2,824,339.38
Infrastructure §,491,372.84
l.ess accumulated depreciation (2,596,060.05)
Total capital asssts 9,613,736.77

Total assets

Liabilities
Current liabilities

10,702,218.30

Accounts payable (361.52)
Accrued interest payable 58,410.33
Accrued compensated absences 10,244.76
Notes payable - current pertion 530,000.00
Total current liabilities 598,293.57
Noncurrent lisbllities
Refundabla deposits 67,800.00
Accrued compensated absencas 2,145.47
Notes payable 5,899,538.48
Less: current portion {530,000.00)
Total noncurrent liabilities 5,439,483.95
Total liabilities 6,037,777.62
Net position
Invested in capital assats, net of related debt 2,714,198.29
Restricted for debt service 178,129.31
Unrestricted 772,113.18

Total net position

3 4,664,440.78

The accompanying notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF CHANDLER
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUND

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Operating revenue
Charges for services:

Statement 6

Municipal
Authority

Enierprise
Fund

Water $ 1,096,484.83
Wastewatsr 264,838.78
Sanitation 482.121.68
Total operating revenue 1,843,245.27
Operating expenses:
Water 485,233.00
Wastewaler 236,196.03
Distributicn 339,394.17
Sanitation 274,250.52
Adminisfration and gzaneral 323,480.36
Total operating expenses 1,658,554.08
Net operating income 184,691.19
Nonoperating revenue (expense)
Investment income 9,118.89
Interest expense (160,989.78)
Other income 8,838.80
Total nonoperating revenue (expense) (143,043.89)
Net income bhefore transfers 41,847.30
Operating transfers: in 788,802.42

Operating transfers: Out
Change in net position
Net position, beginning of year {Note 4.C)

Net position, end of year

(256,846.00)

573,683.72

4,090,747.06

$ 4,664,440.78

The accompanying notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



CITY OF CHANDLER
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUND
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Cash flows from operating activities

Receipts from customers
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities

Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds

Other income

Net cash provided (used) by noncapital financing aciivities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities

Purchase of capital assets
issue new capital debt
Principal paid on capital debt
Interest paid on capital debt

Net cash provided {(used) by capital and related

financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Interest income

Net increase {decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash balance beginning of year

Cash balance end of year

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to
net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Operating income (loss)

Adjustments to reconclle operating income to
net cash provided (used} by operating activities:
Cash flows reported in other categorias:
Depreciation and amortization expensa
Change in assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable
Accrued interest receivable
Refundable deposits
Accounts payable

Accrued interest payable

Accrued compensated absences
Net cash provided by operating activities

Statement 7

Municipal
Autherity

Enterprise
Fund

$ 1,885,77940
{979,805.05)
(434,111.80)

451,862.55

788,882.42
{256,846.00)
8,836.80

540,883,32

(2,943,138.03)

2,821,655.98
{385,000.00;
{160,999.78)

(667,481.83)

9,118.99

334,383.03
524,368.15

3 858,442 18

$ 184,691.19

238,254.63
22,534,13
(1,769.,40)

8,286.49
(134.49)

$ 451,862.55

The accompanying notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF CHANDLER
Chandler, Oklahoma

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended June 30, 2013

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The City of Chandler, Oklahoma (the City) complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America (GAAP) as applicable to governmental units, The Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) is responsible for establishing GAAP for state and local governments through its
pronouncements (Statements and Interpretations.) The accounting and reporting framework and the more
significant accounting policies established in GAAP and used by the City are discussed below.

LA. FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY

In evaluating how to define the reporting entity, management has considered all potential component units. The
decision to include a potential component unit in the reporting entity was made by applying the criteria
established by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), GASB Statement No. 14, The Financial
Reporting Eniity, GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Siatements—and Management's Discussion and
Analysis—for State and Local Governments, and GASB Statement No. 61, amending GASB Statements No. 14
and 34. The basic criteria for including a potential component unit within the reporting entity is the governing
body’s ability to exercise oversight responsibility. Accountability flows from the notion that individuals are
obligated to account for their acts, including the acts of the officials they appoint to operate governmental
agencies. Thus, elected officials are accountable for an organization if they appoint a voting majority of the
organization’s governing board. The primary government is financially accountable if it appoints a voting
majority of the organization’s governing body and (1) it is able to impose its will on that organization, or (2)
there is a potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or impose specific financial
burdens on, the primary government. An organization has a financial benefit or burden relationship with the
primary government if the primary government is legally obligated or has otherwise assumed the obligation to
finance the deficits of, or provide financial support to, the organization.

Based upon the application of these criteria, the City’s financial reporting entity is composed of the following:
Primary Goverament: City of Chandler

Blended Component Units:  Chandler Municipal Authority
North Central Regional Airport Authority

Omitted Component Unit: Chandler Community Development Trust Authority

BLENDED COMPONENT UNITS

A blended component unit is a separate legal entity that meets the component unit criteria. In addition, the
blended component unit’s governing body is the same or substantially the same as the City Council, or the
component unit provides services entirely to the City. The component unit’s funds are blended into those of the

City by appropriate fund type to constitute the primary government presentation. The blended component units
are presented below:
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CITY OF CHANDLER
Chandler, Oklahoma

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended June 30, 2013

1.A. FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY (continued)

Component Unit Brief Description / Inclusion Criteria Fund Included In

Municipal Authority Created September 15, 1970, to finance, develop, and operate  Enterprise Fund
{CMA) the water, wastewater, and sanitation activities of the City.
Current City Council members serve as entire governing body
(trustees). The City of Chandler is the beneficiary of the trust.

North Central Regional Created May 5, 1998, to finance, develop, and operate the Separate Fund
Alirport Authority regional airport. The Authority is governed by five trustees,
which are appointed by the City Council of the City of
Chandler. The beneficiary of the trust is the City of Chandler
and any other additiona! beneficiaries admitted pursuant
to the trust indenture. The Mayor of the City of Chandler
currently serves as a trustee,

OMITTED COMPONENT UNIT

Based upon the application of these criteria, the Chandler Community Development Trust Authority is
considered a component unit of the City of Chandler. However, management has not included the Chandler
Community Development Trust Authority in the City of Chandlel QOklahoma’s, financial statements.
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require the Chandier Community
Development Trust Authority to be presented as a major enterprise fund and firancial information about the
Chandier Community Development Trust Authority to be part of the business-type activities, thus increasing
that activity’s assets, liabilities, revenues, and expenses, and changing its net position. The amount by which this
departure would affect the assets, liabilities, net position, revenues, and expenses of the business-type activities
and the omitted major fund is not reasonably determinable,

The Chandler Community Development Trust Authority (CCDTA) currently leases the Old Armory building,
from the City of Chandler, to house the Route 66 Interpretive Center. The building was renovated with a
$ 631,697 grant from the Oklahoma Department of Transportation. The Route 66 Interpretive Center was
opened on May 19, 2007, The lease was for an initial term of 20 years, for $ 1 per year, The City of Chandler
provides insurance coverage on the building, for which the CCDTA. was to reimburse the City. An amendment
and an addendum to the lease were entered into on September 30, 2009, The amendment became a part of the
lease while the addendum is renewed each fiscal year. Among other provisions, the City funds the CCDTA in
the amount of § 2,000 per month, of which no less than 25 % is to be used for advertising to promote the City.
Other terms allow the City to waive the requirements of the CCDTA to reimburse the City for varicus expenses,
and contains cerlain reporting requirements.

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT

Discretely presented component units are separate legal entities that meet the component unit criteria but do not
meet the criteria for blending. The City of Chandler does not have any discretely presented component units.

The Chandler Municipal Authority, and the North Central Regional Airport Authority, do not issue separately

audited component unit financial statements. The Chandler Community Development Trust Autherity does issue
separately audited component unit financial statements.
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CITY OF CHANDLER
Chandler, Oklahoma

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended June 30, 2013
1.B. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities display information about the reporting government
as a whole. They include all funds of the reporting entity except for fiduciary funds. The statements distinguish
between governmental and business-type activities. Governmental activities generally are financed through
taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other non-exchange revenues. Business-type activitiss are financed in
whole or in part by fees charged to external parties for goods or services.

FUND FINANCTIAL STATEMENTS

Fund financial statements of the reporting entity are organized into funds, each of which is considered to be a
separate accounting entity. Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts that
constitutes its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and expenditures/expenses. Funds are organized into
three major categeries: governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary. The City presently has no fiduciary funds. An
emphasis is placed on major funds within the governmental and proprietary categories. A fund is considered
major if it is the primary operating fund of the City or meets the following criteria;

a. Total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of that individual governmental or
enterprise fund are at least 10 percent of the corresponding total for all funds of that category
or type, and

b. Totzl assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of the individual governmental
fund or enterprise fund are at least 5 percent of the corresponding total for all governmental
and enterprise funds combined.

The funds of the financial reporting entity are described below;

Governmental Funds

Governmental funds are those through which most governmental functions are financed. Governmental fund
reporting focuses on the sources, uses, and balances of current financial resources. Expendable assets are
assigned to the various governmental funds according to the purpose for which they may or must be used.
Current liabilities are assigned to the fund from which they will be paid. The difference between governmental
fund assets and liabilities is reported as fund balance.

General Fund

The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the City and is always classified as a major fund, It is used to
account for all activities except those legally or administratively required to be accounted for in other funds.

Special Revenue Funds

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of the specific revenue sources that are either
legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes or designated to finance particular functions or activities
of the City. The reporting entity includes the following special revenue funds that are reported as major funds:
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CITY OF CHANDLER
Chandler, Oklahoma

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended June 30, 2013

1.B. BASIS OF PRESENTATION (continued)

Fund

North Central
Regional Airport
Authority

Capital Project Funds

Brief Description

Accounts for specific revenues and transfers from other City funds and
expenditures for operations of the airport, and various capital projects.
The City is currently allocating five percent of its two cents sales tax
to the North Central Regional Airport Authority.

Capital project funds are used to account for resources restricted for the acquisition or construction of specific

capital projects or items. The reporting entity includes the following capital project funds that are reported as
major funds; except for the City Capital Improvement Fund which is reported as a nonmajor fund.

Fund

CMA Capital
Improvement Fund

CMA Water Capital
Improvement Fund

City Capital
Improvement Fund

Cemetery Perpetual
Care Fund

Proprietary Funds

Enterprise Fund

Brief Description

Accounts for the one cent sales tax under Ordinance 1995-06. Funds can
be expended for capital improvements for water plant improvements,
sewer plant improvements, water line repair and replacement, or

sewer line repair and replacement, or any other public works projects
approved by the city council or the payment of debt service. The CMA
Capital Improvement Fund was not created and utilized until July 1, 2008,
Prior to that, revenue and expenditures were through the CMA Fund.

Accounts for the one cent sales tax under Ordinance 1980-04. Funds can
be expended only for the water system. The CMA Water Capital
Improvement Furid was not created and utilized until July 1, 2008, Prior
to that, revenue and expenditures were through the CMA Fund,

Accounts for specific revenues and transfers from other City funds and
expenditures for various capital projects. The City is currently allocating
five percent of its two cents sales tax to the City Capital Improvement

Fund, to be used for any capital improvement project approved by the
city council.

Accounts for the 12.5 % of all cemetery revenues that are legally
restricted for cemetery use,

Enterprise funds are used to account for business-fike activities provided to the general public. These activities
are financed primarily by user charges, and the measurement of financial activity focuses on net income
measurement similar to the private sector, The reporting entity includes the following enterprise fund that is

reported as a major fund:
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1.B. BASIS OF PRESENTATION (continued)

Fund Brief Description
Municipal Authority Accounts for the activities of the public trust in providing water,
(CMA) wastewater, and sanitation services to the public,

1.C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

Measurement focus is a term used to describe “how” transactions are recorded within the various financial
statements, Basis of accounting refers to “when” transactions are recorded regardless of the measurement focus
applied.

MEASUREMENT FOCUS

In the government-wide Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, both governmental and

business-like activities are presented using the economic resources measurement focus, as defined in item b
below.

In the fund financial statements, the “current financial resources” measurement focus or the “economic
resources” measurement focus is used as appropriate:

a. All governmental funds utilize a “current financial resources” measurement focus, Only current
financial assets and liabilities are generally included on their balance sheets. Their operating
statements present sources and uses of available spendable financial resources during a given period.
These funds use funrd balance as their measure of available spendable financial resources at the end
of the period.

b. The proprietary fund utilizes an “economic resources” measurement focus. The accounting objectives
of this measurement focus are the determination of operating income, changes in net assets {or cost
recovery), financial position, and cash flows. All assets and liabilities (whether current or noncurrent,
financial, or nonfinancial) associated with their activities are reported. Proprietary fund equity is
classified as net assets,

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

In the government-wide Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities and the fund financial statements,
governmental and business-like activities, and component unit activities, are presented using the accrual basis of
accounting, Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are
recorded when the liability is incurred or economic asset used. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets, and
liabilities resulting from exchange and exchange-like transactions are recognized when the exchange takes
place.

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds and agency funds are presented on the modified acerual

basis of accounting, Under this modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when
“measurable and available.”” Measurable means krowing or being able to reasonably estimate the amount.
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1.C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (continued)

Available means collectible within the current period or within sixty days after year end. Expenditures
{including capital outlay) are recorded when the related fund fiability is incurred, except for general obligation
bond principal and interest which are reported when due,

All proprietary funds utilize the acerual basis of accounting, Under the acerual basis of accounting, revenues are
recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when the liability is incurred or economic asset used.

1.D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND EQUITY

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the purpose of the statements of net position, balance sheets, and statement of cash flows, “cash and cash
equivalents” includes all demand and savings accounts, certificates of deposit or short-term investments with an
original maturity of three months or less and money market accounts.

INVESTMENTS

“Investments classified in the financial statements, consist entirely of certificates of deposit whose original
maturity term exceeds three months. Investments are carried at cost, which approximates fair value.

RECEIVABLES

In the government-wide statements, receivables consist of all revenues earned at year-end and not yet received,
Uncollectible accounts receivable, based upon historical trends, are very minimal and thus immaterial to the
financial statements. Thus, no allowance for uncollectible accounts receivable has been recorded. Major
receivable balances for the governmental activities include sales and use taxes, franchise taxes, alcoholic
beverage tax, motor vehicle taxes, and police fines. Business-type activities report utilities and interest earnings
as their major receivables,

In the fund financial statements, material receivables in governmental funds include revenue accruals such as
sales tax, franchise tax, and grants and other similar intergovernmental revenues since they are usually both
measurable and available. Nonexchange transactions collectible but not available are deferred in the fund
financial statements in accordance with modified acerual, but not deferred in the government-wide financial
stalements in accordance with the accrual basis. Interest and investment earnings are recorded when earned only
if' paid within 60 days since they would be considered both measurable and avaifable. Proprietary fund material
receivables consist of all revenues earned at vear-end and not yet received. Utility accounts receivable and
interest earnings compose the majority of proprietary fund receivables. Uncollectible accounts receivable, based
upon historical trends, are very minimal and thus immaterial to the financial statements. Thus, no allowance for
uncollectible accounts receivable has been recorded.

INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds that may result in
amounts owed between funds. Those related to goods and services type transactions are classified as “due to and
from other funds.” Short-term interfund loans are reported as “interfund receivables and payables.” Long-term
interfund loans {noncurrent portion) are reported as “advances from and to other funds.” Interfund receivables
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1.D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND EQUITY (continued)

and payables between funds within governmental activities are eliminated in the Statement of Net Position. See
Note 3.H. for details of interfund transactions, including receivables and payables at year-end.

INVENTORIES

The cost of consumable materials and supplies on hand are immaterial to the financial statements, and the City
has therefore chosen to report these items as expenditures at the time of purchase.

CAPITAL ASSETS

The accounting treatment of property, plant, and equipment (capital assets) depends on whether the assets are
used in governmental fund operations or proprietary fund and similar discretely presented component unit
operations and whether they are reported in the government-wide or fund financial statements.

Government-Wide Statements

In the government-wide financial statements, fixed assets are accounted for as capital assets. All capital assets
are valued at historical cost, or estimated historical cost if actual is unavailable.

Depreciation of all exhaustible capital assets is recorded as an allocated expense in the Statement of Activities,
with accumulated depreciation reflected in the Statement of Net Position, Depreciation is provided over the
assets’ estimated usefu! lives using the straight-line method of depreciation, A capitalization threshold of
$ 2,000 is used to report capital assets. The range of estimated useful lives by type of asset is as follows:

Office equipment 5-10 years
Furniture 7-10 years
Equipment 3-15 years
Vehicles 5-10 years
Buildings 20-40 vears
Infrastructure 25-50 vears

Fund Financial Statements

In the fund financial statements, capital assets used in governmental fund operations are accounted for as capital
outlay expenditures of the governmental fund upon acquisition. Capital assets acquired for use in proprietary
fund operations are accounted for the same as in the government-wide statements,

RESTRICTED ASSETS

Restricted assets include cash and investments that are legally restricted as to their use. The primary restricted
assets, of the proprietary fund, are related to promissory note trustee accounts and utility meter deposits. The
primary restricted assets of the governmental funds are the sales tax amounts of the Capital Improvement Fund,
and the grant and other restricted bank accounts of the General Fund.
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LONG-TERM DEBT

The accounting treatment of long-term debt depends on whether the assets are used in governmental fund
operations or proprietary fund operations and whether they are reported in the government-wide or fund
financial statements.

All long-term debt to be repaid from governmental and business-type resources are reported as liabilities in the
government-wide statements. The long-term debt consists primarily of notes payable and accrued compensated
absences.

Long-term debt for governmental funds is not reported as liabilities in the fund financial statements. The debt
proceeds are reported as other financing sources and payment of principle and interest reported as expenditures.

The accounting for proprietary funds is the same in the fund statements as it is in the government-wide
statements.

COMPENSATED ABSENCES

The City’s policies regarding vacation time permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation and
sick leave. Vacation pay vests for full time employees, after six months of continuous service, as outlined in the
Personnel Policies Handbook, adopted by the city council on September 2, 2003, Vacation pay accrues on a
scale from 6.67 hours per month for zero to two years service, to 13.33 hours per month for 19 plus vears of
service. Fire department and management employees are subject to a slightly different scale. Vacation time is to
be taken in the calendar year in which earned, Employees may carry over a maximum of forty hours from year
to year. Employees may request payment in leu of vacation time off for a maximum of forty hours each vear,

Sick leave accrues for full time employees at 8 hours per month, to a maximum accrual of 1,400 hours although
it is not vested. Any employee who has not used more than two days of sick leave during the previous twelve
months may receive a well bonus equal to two paid days or have two days added to their vacation time as
determined by the department head.

The liability for these compensated absences is recorded as long-term debt in the government-wide statements.
The current portion of this debt is estimated based on historical trends, In the fund financial statements,
governmental funds report only the compensated absence liability payable from expendable available financial
resources, while the proprietary funds report the liability as it is incurred.

EQUITY CLASSIFICATION

Net Position

Net position represent the difference between assets and liabilities, Net assets invested in capital assets, net of
related debt consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of
any borrowings used for the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets. Net assets are reported as
restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use either through the enabling legislation adopted by the
City or through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors or laws or regulations of other governments.
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1.D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND EQUITY (continued)

EQUITY CLASSIFICATION

The City applies restricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and
unrestricted net assets are available.

Fund Balance

Fund Balance is divided into five classifications based primarily on the extent to which the City is bound to

observe constraints imposed upon the use of the resources in the governmental funds, The classifications are as
follows:

Nonspendable — The nonspendable fund balance categery includes amounts that cannot be spent because they
are not in spendable form, or legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. The “not in spendable
form” criterion includes items that are not expected to be converted to cash, It also includes the long-term
amount of interfund loans.

Restricted — Fund balance is reported as restricted when constraints placed on the use of resources are either
externally imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or taws or regulations

of other governments or is imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation (City
ordinances),

Enabling legislation authorizes the City to assess, levy, charge, or otherwise mandate payment of resources
(from external resource providers) and includes 2 legally enforceable requirement that those resources be used
only for the specific purposes stipulated in the legislation. Legal enforceability means that the City can be
compelled by an external party — such as citizens, public interest groups, or the judiciary to use resources created
by enabling legislation only for the purposes specified by the legislation.

Comumitted - The commiited fund balance classification includes amounts that can be used only for the specific
purposes impesed by formal action (ordinance or resolution) of the City Council. Those committed amounts
cannot be used for any other purpose unless the City Council removes or changes the specified use by taking the
same type of action (ordinance or resolution) it employed to previously commit those amounts. [n contrast to
fund balance that is restricted by enabling legislation, committed fund balance classification may be redeployed
for other purposes with appropriate due process. Constraints imposed on the use of committed amounts are
imposed by the City Council, separate from the authorization to raise the underlying revenue; therefore,
compliance with these constraints are not considered to be legally enforceable. Committed fund balance also
incorporates contractual obligations to the extent that existing resources in the fund have been specifically
committed for use in satisfying those contractual requirements.

Assigned — Amounts in the assigned fund balance ¢classification are intended to be used by the City for specific
purposes but de not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed. In governmental funds other
than the General Fund, assigned fund balance represents the remaining amount that is not restricted or
committed. In the General Fund, assigned amounts represent intended uses established by the City Council or a
City official delegated that authority by City Charter or ordinance.
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1.D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND EQUITY (continued)

Unassigned — Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification for the General Fund and includes all
spendable amounts not contained in the other classifications. In other governmental funds, the unassigned
classification is used only to report a deficit balance resulting from overspending for specific purposes for which
amounts had been restricted, committed, or assigned.

The City applies restricted resources first when expenditures are incurred for purposes for which either restricted
or unrestricted (committed, assigned, and unassigned) amounts are available. Similarly, within unrestricted fund
balance, committed amounts are reduced first followed by assigned, and then unassigned amounts when
expenditures are incurred for purposes for which amounts in any of the unrestricted fund balance classifications
could be used.

Fund balances at June 30, 2013, for the governmenta! funds are as follows:

Capital Projects Funds Other
General Alrport CMA Cap Water Cap Government
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Total

Fund balances:
Invested in capital assets, net
of related depreciation 6,952,133.01  1,288,126.00 8,240,259.01
Restricted for:

Capital projects 6,520.16 5,520.16
Bood fund / CLEET 2,928.00 2,928.00
Perpetual cemetery care 68,626.29 68,626.29
Total Restricted 0,448.16 - - - 68,626.29 78,074.45
Committed to: -
Capital projects - 1,101,077.05  [,634,712.72 97,959.14  2,833,748.91
Assigned to:
Airport operations - 125,301.95 ' 125,301.95
Unassigned 713,083.19 713,083.19
Total Fund Balances 7,674,664.36  1,413,427.95 1,101,077.05 1,634,712.72 166,585.43  11,990,467.51

LE. REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND EXPENSES
SALES TAX

The City presently levies a four-cent sales tax on taxable sales within the City. The sales tax is collected by the
Oklahoma Tax Commission and remitted to the City in the month following receipt by the Tax Commission.
The Tax Comimission receives the sales tax approximately one month after collection by vendors, The sales tax
is atlocated two cents to the General Fund, and two cents to the Chandler Municipal Authority. Of the two cents
allocated to the General Fund, five percent is allocated to the City Capital Improvement Fund, and five percent
is allocated to the North Central Regional Airport Authority Fund. Of the two ¢ents allocated to the Chandler
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1L.E. REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND EXPENSES (continued)

Municipal Authority, one cent is allocated to the CMA. Capital Improvement Fund, and one cent is allocated to
the CMA Water Capital Improvement Fund, Sales tax collected by the State in June and received by the City in
July has been accrued and is included under the caption “Receivable from other governments.”

The sales tax revenue note (Note 3.G.) will be repaid from a portion of the revenue generated by the two percent
sales tax levied pursuant to Ordinance Nos. 745 and 80-4 of the City, and transferred to the Chandler Municipal
Authority. The Authority has pledged the sales tax revenue to the Trustee as set out in the note indenture, and
has created a security interest in that sales tax revenue in favor of the Trustee for the benefit of the holders of the
notes. The Authority and the City of Chandter, Oklahoma, have entered into a Sales Tax Agreement, dated June
1, 2006, wherein the City of Chandler agrees, on a year-to-year basis subject to annual appropriation, to pay
under certain circumstances to the Authority each month as received, a portion of the monies derived from the
levy and collection of the excise tax levied pursuant to the sales tax ordinances discussed above.

In accordance with a Sales Tax Agreement between the City and the Chandler Municipal Authority, dated May
1, 2012, the City agreed to pledge the 1 % sales tax allocated to the Chandler Municipal Authority to secure the
payment of a § 1,175,000 Clean Water SRF Promissory Note and a $ 2,500,000 Drinking Water SRF
Promissory Note, both issued by the Oklahoma Water Resources Board, for the purposes of financing
wastewater system improvements and drinking water improvements serving the City, The sales tax is to be
deposited in a special account established in the General Fund of the City. The City agrees to appropriale that
money each year, to be paid over as received for immediate deposit in a bank designated by the Authority, in an
account to be established entitled the Chandler Municipal Authority Sales Tax Fund. The Authority has pledged
the Sales Tax Revenue to the Oklahoma Water Resources Board for the purpose of paying debt service on the
notes. In the event the Authority is current on its debt service payments as required by the loan agreements and
there is no event of default as defined in the loan agreements, then any remaining Sales Tax Revenue in the
Sales Tax Fund shall be transferred back to the special account established in the General Fund of the City and
shall be available on the last day of the month for any lawful purpose.

USE TAX

The City levies a four-cent use tax on personal property purchased outside of Oklahoma but stored, used, or
consumed within the city. The use tax is collected by the Oklahoma Tax Commission and remitted to the City in
the month following receipt by the Tax Commission, which is one month after the tax is received from the
vendors. The use tax is allocated entirely to the City Capital Improvement Fund. Use tax collected by the State
in June and received by the City in July has been accrued and is included under the caption “Receivable from
other governments.”

PROGRAM REVENUES

[n the Statement of Activities, revenues that are derived directly from each activity or from parties outside the

City’s taxpayers are reported as program revenues, The City has the following program revenues in each
activity:

General Government Permit fees
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LE. REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND EXPENSES (continued)

Public Safety Fine revenue, fire protection, ambulance service, operating
and capital grants including State Department of
Agriculture grants

Culture and Recreation Sign up feés, membership fees, gate fees, use fees, operating
and capital grants include an Oklahoma Department of
Libraries grant

All other governmental revenues are reported as general, All taxes are classified as general revenue even if
restricted for a specific purpose, except for the commercial vehicle tax and the gasoline excise tax, both of
which are restricted for street and alley purposes.

OPERATING REVENUE AND EXPENSES

Operating revenues and expenses for proprietary funds result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods and/or services, They also include all revenues and expenses not related to capital and related
financing, noncapital financing, or investing activities,

LF. INFERNAL AND INTERFUND BALANCES AND ACTIVITIES
In the process of aggregating the financial information for the government-wide Statement of Net Position and

Statement of Activities, some amounts reported as interfund activity and balances in the fund financial
statements have been eliminated or reclassified.

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Interfund activity, if any, within and ameng the governmental and proprietary fund categories is reported as
follows in the fund financial statements:

1. Interfund loans — Amounts provided with a requirement for repayment are reported as interfund
receivables and payables,

2. Intertund services — Sales or purchases of goods and services between funds are reported as revenues
and expenditures/expenses.

3. Interfund reimbursements — Repayments from funds responsible for certain expenditures/expenses to
the funds that initially paid for them are not reported as reimbursements but as adjustments to
expenditure/expenses in the respective funds,

4. Interfund transfers — Flow of assets from one fund to another where repayment is not expected is
reported as transfers in and out.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Interfund activity and balances, if any, are eliminated or reclassified in the government-wide financial
statemnents as follows:
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LF. INTERNAL AND INTERFUND BALANCES AND ACTIVITIES (continued)

1. Internal balances — Amounts reported in the fund financial statements as interfund receivables and
payables are eliminated in the governmenta! and business-type activities columns of the Statement of
Net Assets, except for the net residual amounts due between governmental and business-type
activities, which are reported as Internal Balances.

2, Internal activities — Amounts reported as interfund transfers in the fund financial statements are
etiminated in the government-wide Statement of Activities except for the net amount of transfers
between governmental and business-type activities, which are reported as Transfers — Internal
Activities. The effects of interfund services between funds, if any, are not eliminated in the Statement
of Activities.

3. Primary government and component unit activity and balances — Resource flows between the primary
government (the City and Municipal Authority) and the discretely-presented component units (if
amry) are reported as if they were external transactions and are classified separately from internaf
balances and activities within the primary government,

1.G. USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period (such as estimated useful lives in determining depreciation
expense.) Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

NOTE 2. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY

By its nature as a local government unit, the City and its component units are subject to various federal, state,
and local laws and contractual regulations. An analysis of the City’s compliance with significant laws and
regulations and demonstration of its stewardship over City resources follows.

2.A. UNINSURED AND UNCOLLATERALIZED DEPOSITS

In accordance with State law, all uninsured deposits of municipal funds in financial institutions must be secured
with acceptable collateral. Acceptable collateral includes certain U.S. Government or Government Agency
securities, certain State or political subdivision debt obligations, surety bonds, or certain letters of credit. As
reflected in Note 3.A., all deposits were fully insured or collateralized.

NOTE 3. DETAIL NOTES — TRANSACTION CLASSES/ACCOUNTS

3.A. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Custodial Credit Risk - Custodial credit risk related to deposits exists when the City holds deposits that are
uninsured and uncollateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution, or by its trust

department or agent but not in the City’s name, or collateralized without a written or approved collateral
agreement. Exposure to custodial credit risk related to investments exists when the City holds investments that
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NOTE 3. DETAIL NOTES — TRANSACTION CLASSES/ACCOUNTS
3.A. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (continued)

are uninsured and unregistered, with securities held by the counterparty or by its trust department or agent but

not in the City’s name. The City’s policy for custodial credit risk is to secure its uninsured deposits with
collateral.

At June 30, 2013, § 683,488.55 of the City’s bank balances of § 4,395,617.69 was covered by federal depository
msurance, and the remainder (excluding the petty cash funds of $ 740.00) was covered by collateral held by the
City’s bank in the City’s name, and by a $ 4,000,000 Irrevocable Letter of Credit for Local Funds issued in the
City’s favor with the Federal Home Loan Bank of Topeka.

Investment Credit Risk - The City’s has no investment policy that limits its investments choices other than the
limitation of state law as follows:

a) Direct obligations of the U.S. Government, i{s agencies or instrumentalities to which the full faith and credit

of the U.S. Government is pledged, or obligations to the payment of which the full faith and credit of the State
_ is pledged.

b} Certificates of deposit or savings accounts that are either insured or secured with acceptable collateral with
in-state financial institutions, and fully insured certificates of deposit or savings accounts in out-of-state
financial institutions.

¢) With certain limitation, negotiable certificates of deposit, prime bankers acceptances, prime commercial
paper, and repurchase agreements with certain limitations.

d) County, municipal, or school district tax-supported debt obligation, bond or revenue anticipation notes,
money judgments, or bond or revenue anticipation notes of public trusts whose beneficiary is a county,
municipality, or school district.

e) Notes or bonds secured by mortgage or trust deed insured by the Federal Housing Administrator and

debentures issued by the Federal Housing Administrator, and in obligations of the National Mortgage
Association.

) Money market funds regulated by the Securities and Exchange Commission and in which investments
consist of the investments mentioned in the previous paragraphs a,b,c, and d.

Public trusts created under O.S. Title 60 are not subject to the above noted investment limitations and are
primarily governed by any restrictions in their trust or bond indentures. For the year ended June 30, 2013, the

City, the Chandier Municipal Authority, and the North Central Regional Airport Authority complied, in all
material respects, with these investment restrictions.

Investment Inferest Rate Risk — the City does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment
maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates.

36



CITY OF CHANDLER
Chandler, Okliahoma

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended June 30, 2013

3.A. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (continued)

Concentration of Credit Risk — The City places no limit on the amount it may invest in any one issuer. Since the
City has all investments in certificates of deposit, there is no concentration of investment eredit risk exposure.

The deposits and investments held at June 30, 2013, are as follows;

Maturity Credit Market
Type {(Months) Rating Value Cost
Cash Deposits N/A N/A 4,236,558.72 4,236,558.72
Investments
Certificates of Deposit 12 N/A 159,058.97 159.,058.97
Total Deposits and Investments 4,395,617.69 4,395,617.69

Recenciliation to Statement of Net Assets

Governmental Activities $ 3,537,175.51

Business-Type Activities 858.442.18
$ 4,395,617.69

3.B. RESTRICTED ASSETS

The amounts reported as restricted assets are composed of amounts held by the Municipal Authority for utility
deposits (refunded upon fermination of service or applied to final bill) of $ 72,490.43; amounts held in trustee
accounts on behalf of the promissory note in the amount of $ 178,129.31; amounts held in various checking
accounts for various capital projects of § 2,800,863.95; amounts held in various grant and other checking

accounts of § 9,448.16; amounts held for airport operations of $ 119,513.85; and amounts held for perpetual
cemetery care of § 68,581.37,

3.C. RESTRICTED REVENUES

The City has various restrictions placed over certain revenue sources from state or local requirements, The
primary restricted revenue sources include:

Revenue Source Legal Restrictions of Use
Sales Tax See Note 1.E.
Gasoline Excise & Commercial Vehicle Tax Street & Aliey purposes
Grant proceeds Grant expenditures

Accounts receivable of the business-type activities consist entirely of ufilities receivable. Accounts receivable of
the governmental activities consist of sales tax (59.03 %), franchise tax (25.2 %), ambularce service (7.4 %),
use tax (1.8 %), tobacco tax (0.5 %), motor vehicle tax (0.4 %), gasoline excise tax (0.07 %), fines and court
costs {5.6 %), Receivables detail at June 30, 2013, is as follows:

37



CITY OF CHANDLER
Chandler, Oklahoma

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended June 30, 2013

3.D. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
Accounts receivable § 532,697 230,033 762,730
3.E. CAPITAL ASSETS
Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, was as follows:
Balance at Balance at
Governmental activities: July 1, 2012 Additions Deductions June 30. 2013
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land 5 3.208.586 § $ 3 3.208.586
Other capital assets:
Office furniture & equipment 124,203 2,999 127,202
Equipment 1,605,098 93,773 1,698,871
Vehicles 1,329,356 60,161 1,389,517
Buildings 1,320,933 478,849 1,799,782
lnfrastructure 2,985.876 18,776 3.004,652
Total other capital assets at historical cost 7,365,466 654,558 8,020,024
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Office furniture & equipment 97,474 2,893 100,367
Equipment 754,172 88,635 842,807
Vehicles 885,335 122,095 1,007,430
Buildings 588,401 45,124 633,525
[nfrastructure 329613 74,609 404.224
Total accumulated depreciation 2.654.997 333356 - 2,988,353
Cther capital assets, net 4,710,469 321,202 “ 5,031,671
Government activities capital assets, net $ 7,619,055 % 321,202 % - § 8,240,257
Business-type activities.
Capital assets not being depraciated:
Land i 21351 §$ ¥ $ 21,351
Other capital assets:
Office furniture & equipment 26,222 26,222
Equipment 619,012 67,454 686,466
Vehicles 160,045 160,045
Buildings 2,824,339 2,824,339
[nfrastructure 5,615,689 2,875,684 8,491,373
Total other capital asseis at historical cost 9.245.307 2,943.138 12,188.445
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Office furniture & equipment 36,844 2,077 38,921
Equipment 312,967 42,821 355,788
Yehicles 83,776 12,509 96,685
Buildings 556,688 4,395 561,084
Infrastructure ' 1,367,530 176,051 1,543,581
Total accumulated depreciation 2,357,805 238.254 - 2,396,059
Cther capital assets, net 6,887,502 2,704,884 - 9,592,386
Business-type activities capital assets, net $ 6,908,853 $ 2,704,884 § -3 9,613,737
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3.E. CAPITAL ASSETS (continued)

Depreciation expense was charged to functions as follows in the Statement of Activities:

Primary Government;

Governmental Activities:
General Government
Public Safety
Alirport
Streets
Culture and Recreation

Total depreciation expense for governmental activities

Business-Type Activities:
Water
Distribution
Wastewater
Admin and general
Total depreciation expense for business-type activities

3.F. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

Payables in the General Fund and nonmajor governmental funds are composed entirely of payables to vendors.

i 52,527

151,788
29,904
73,171

25,966

$ 333,356

$ 106,457

57413
16,551

5709

$ 238,254

Payables of Utilities Enterprise Fund are also composed entirely of payables to vendors.

3.G. LONG-TERM DEBT

The reporting entity’s long-term debt is segregated between the amounts to be repaid from governmental

activities and amounts to be repaid from business-type activities.

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

As of June 30, 2013, the governmental long-term debt of the financial reporting entity consisted of the

following:
Accrued Compensated Absences:

e Current Portion
¢ Noncurrent portion

Total Governmental activity debt

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES

39

$  33,747.82
14,383.38
$  48,131.20



CITY OF CHANDLER
Chandler, Oklahoma

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended June 30, 2013

3.G. LONG-TERM DEBT (continued)

As of June 30, 2013, the long-term debt payable from proprietary fund resources consisted of the following:

Notes Payable:

* In June 2006, the Authority and Bancfirst, Cklahoma City, Oklahoma,

(the “Trustee”™) approved a note indenture providing for the issuance of

its Sales Tax Revenue Note — Series 2006, in the principal amount of

$ 5,630,000, Bank of America, N.A purchased the note. The note is for

a period of 13 %4 years, with interest at 4.495 %. Monthly payments are

made to a debt service fund maintained by the trustee, who then makes

the semi-annual principal and interest payments under the note, $ 2,975,000.00
¢ In May 2012, the Authority entered into a loan agreement with the

Oklahoma Water Resources Board, as part of the wastewater project

discussed below, for § 1,175,000, The loan is for a period of 10 years,

with semi-annual payments beginning September 15, 2013, The loan

includes interest and an administrative fee totaling 1.67 %, 963,488.72
» InJuly 2012, the Authority entered into a loan agreement with the

Oklahoma Water Resources Board, as part of the drinking water system

discussed below, for § 2,500,000, The loan is for a peried of 10 years,

with semi-annual payments beginning September 15, 2013. The locan

includes interest and an administrative fee totaling 1.99 %. 1.961,049.76

Total Notes Payable § 5,899,538.48

The sales tax revenue note will be repaid from a portion of the revenue generated by an aggregate tota! of two
percent sales tax levied pursuant to Ordinance Nos. 745 and 80-4 of the City of Chandler, Oklahoma. As
consideration for the execution of the note indenture and the issuance of the note by the Authority and in order
‘o secure all the payments required by the note, the Authority has pledged the sales tax revenue to the Trustee as
set out in the notfe indenture, and has created a security interest in that sales tax revenue in favor of the Trustee
for the benefit of the holders of the notes. The Authority and the City of Chandler, Oklahoma, have entered into
a Sales Tax Agreement, dated June 1, 2006, wherein the City of Chandler agrees, on a year-to-year basis subject
to annual appropriation, to pay under certain circumstances to the Authority each month as received, a portion of

the monies derived from the levy and collection of the excise tax levied pursuant to the sales tax ordinances
discussed above.

In May 2012, the Chandler Municipal Authority entered into a $ 1,175,000 loan with the Oklahoma Water
Resources Board, through the Clean Water SRF (State Revolving Fund) Loan Program, for improvements to the
waslewater system. The total cost of the project is estimated at $ 1,175,000. Under the FY 2011 Appropriation
Bill for the Clean Water State Revolving Fund Program (CWSRF) the Oklahoma Water Resources Board has
the ability to provide additional subsidization in the form of principal forgiveness to projects that incorporate
eligible “green” elements. The OWRB engineering staff has determined that approximately $ 210,000 was
considered “green” according to EPA’s Green Project Reserve Guidelines. Thus, the available loan principle
forgiveness amount is § 210,000, pending compliance with ORWB’s guidelines. The security for the ican
includes a pledge and assignment of revenues derived by the Authority from its operation of the water, sanitary
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3.G. LONG-TERM DEBT (continued)

sewer and sanitation systems serving the City of Chandler, and a year-to-year pledge of certain sales tax revenue
(discussed in Note 1.E.) Through June 30, 2013, a total of § 963,488.72 was drawn under the loan agreement,
and expended.

In July 2012, the Chandler Municipal Authority entered into a § 2,500,000 loan with the Oklahoma Water
Resources Board, throngh the Drinking Water SRF (State Revolving Fund) Loan Program, for improvements to
the drinking water system. The total cost of the project is estimated at $ 2,500,000. Under the FY 2011
Appropriation Bill for the Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Program (DWSRF) the Oklahoma Water
Resources Board has the ability to provide additional subsidization in the form of principal forgiveness to
projects that incorporate eligible “green” elements. The OWRB engineering staff has determined that
approximately $ 375,000 was considered “green” according to EPA’s Green Project Reserve Guidelines. Thus,
the available loan principle forgiveness amount is § 375,000, pending compliance with ORWR’s guidelines. The
security for the loan includes a pledge and assignment of revenues derived by the Authority from its operation of
the water, sanitary sewer and sanitation systems serving the City of Chandler, and a year-to-year pledge of
certain sales tax revenue (discussed in Note 1.E.) Through June 30, 2013, a total of $ 1,961,049.76 was drawn
under the loan agreement, and expended.

Refundable Deposits:

* Refundable deposits reported as a liability within the Statement
of Net Assets are composed of the following:

Utility Deposits — Refundable $ 67,800.00
Accrued Compensated Absences:
e Current portion hY 10,244.76
* Noncurrent portion 2,145.47
$ 12,390.23

CHANGES IN LONG-TERM DEBT

The following is a summary of changes in long-term debt for the year ended June 30, 2013.

Balance Balance  Amount Due
July 1, June 30,  Within One
Type of Debt 2012 Additions  Reductions 2013 Year
Governmental Activities:
Accrued compensated absences 40,743 7,388 48,131 33,748
Business-Type Activities:
Bank of America 3,360,000 385,000 2,975,000 405,000
Oklahoma Water Resources Board - 1,961,050 1,961,050 85,000
Oklahoma Water Resources Board 102,882 860,607 963,489 40,000
Accrued compensated absences 12,524 134 12,390 10,245
Refundable deposits 67,8C0 67,800 67,800
Total Business-Type
Activities 3,543,206 2,821,657 385,134 5,979,729 608,045
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3.G. LONG-TERM DEBT (continued)

DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS TO MATURITY

The annual debt service requirements to maturity, including principal and interest, for long-term debt, as of June
30,2013, are as follows:

Bank of Oklahoma Water Oklahoma Water
Year Ended America Loan Resources Beard Loan . Resources Board Loan
June 30, Principal _Interest Principal _Inferest Principal _Interest
2014 405,000 129,231 40,000 19,455 85,000 49332
2015 425,000 110,802 40,000 18,787 86,000 47,630
2016 440,000 91,473 42,000 18,119 90,000 45,919
2017 460,000 71,470 44,000 17,410 62,000 44,118
2018 485,000 50,568 43,0600 16,675 91,000 42,278
2019-2023 760,000 34,274 754,489 56,253 1,517,050 143,638
2024-2028 - - - - - -
Total 2,975,000 487,818 963,489 146,699 1,961,050 372,915

3LH. INTERFUND TRANSFERS AND BALANCES

INTERFUND TRANSFERS

Transfers between funds of the primary government for the year ended June 30, 2013, were as follows:

MAJOR FUNDS Transfers In Transfers Qut
GENERAL FUND
City Capital Improvement Fund 166,452.75
Cemetery Fund 3,790.00
Municipal Authority 256.846.00 -
Total General Fund 427,088.75 -
CITY CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND
General Fund 166,452,735
ENTERPRISE FUND
Municipal Authority
General Fund 256,846.00
CMA Capital Improvement Fund 145,767.97
Water Capital Improvement Fund 643.124.45 -
Total Enterprise Fund 788,892.42 256,846,00
CMA CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND
Municipal Authority 145,767.97
WATER CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND
Municipal Authority 643,124.45
CEMETERY FUND

General Fund 3,790.00
GRAND TOTALS 1,215,981.17 1,215,981.17
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3.H. INTERFUND TRANSFERS AND BALLANCES (continued)

The transfers reflected in the above schedule are used to move restricted resources collected by the General

Fund to the funds authorized to spend the resources and to transfer funds from the Municipal Authority to the
General Fund in accordance with the budget.

NOTE 4: OTHER NOTES

4. A. RETIREMENT PLANS

4.A.1. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLANS

OKLAHOMA MUNICIPAT, RETIREMENT FUNDS

The City provides a defined benefit plan, with the Oklahoma Municipal Retirement Fund, for all employees.
The plan is available to all full-time employees not already participating in another state plan. In a defined
benefit plan, benefits are actuarially determined based on number of years of service, as determined under the
plan. Benefits vest after five years. All employees contribute to the Plan an amount equal to 4.5 % of annual

compensation. The City contributed at the rate of 8,77 % of employee compensation for the year ended June 30,
2013.

The city manager participates in the CMO pian of the Oklahoma Municipal Retirement Fund, which is the
defined contribution plan for city managers only, as well as the defined benefit plan above. In a defined
contribution plan, benefits depend solely on-amounts contributed to the plan, investment earnings, and
forfeitures of other participants’ benefits that may be allocated to such participant’s account. The City
contributed 10.64 % of covered payroll (of which 8.77 % went into the defined benefit plan above, and 1.87 %
went into the CMO plan) and the city manager contributed 7.5 % for the year ended June 30, 2013 (of which
4.5 % went into the defined benefit plan above, and 3 % went into the CMO plan.) These percentages can vary

from year to year. Participants are permitted to make voluntary deductible contributions to the plan. Benefits
are immediately vested.

For the year ended June 30, 2013, the following amounts relate to the plans:

Defined
CMO Plan Benefit Plan
City total payroll $ 93,517 $ 1,630,284
Payroll Tor covered emplovees 93,517 1,005,111
Employee contributions made 2,806 47,192
Employer (City) contributions made 1,749 87,292
City contributions as a % of covered payroll 1.87 % 8.77 %

4.A.2. COST-SHARING, MULTIPLE-EMPLOYER PLANS

OKLAHOMA POLICE AND FIREFIGHTER’S PENSION AND RETIREMENT SYSTEMS
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4.A.2. COST-SHARING, MULTIPLE-EMPLOYER PLANS (continued)

The City of Chandler participates in two statewide, cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit plans on
behalf of police officers and firefighters. The systems are administered by agencies of the State of Oklahoma
and funded by contributions from participants, employers, insurance premium taxes, and state appropriations, as
necessary. The following is a summary of eligibility factors, contribution methods, and benefit provisions.

Eligibility to participate

Authority establishing
contribution obligations
and benefits

Plan members’ contribution
rate

City’s contribution rate
Period required to vest
Benefits and eligibility

for distribution (full-
time)

Benefits and eligibility for
distribution (volunteer)

Deferred retirement option

Provisions for:

Oklahoma Police Pension
and Retirement Svstem

All full-time officers employed by a
participating municipality; not less than
21 years of age or more than 45 years
of age when hired

State Statute

8 % of covered payroll
13 % of covered payroll
10 years

20 years credited service, 2.5 % of
final average salary multiplied by the
vears of credited service with a
maximum of 30 years considered; if
vested, at or afier age 50, or after 10
but before 20 years of credited service,
with reduced benefits,

Yes, 20 years credited service with
additional option to pa-ticipate in
deferred option plan for a maximum
of 5 years

Cost of living adjustments (normal retirement)  Yes
Death (duty, non-duty, pest retirement) Yes

Disability {duty, non-duty)
Cost of living allowances

Trend Information

Yes
Yes

Contributions required by State Statute;
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Oklahoma Firefighter’s Pension
and Retirement Systam

All full-time or voluntary firefighters of a
participating municipality and hired before
age 43.

State Statute

§ % of covered payroll
13 % of covered payroll
10 vears

20 years credited service, 2.5 % of

fina! average salary multiplied by the years
of credited service with a maximum

of 30 years considered; if vested, at or after
age 50, or after 10 but before 20 years of
credited service, with reduced benefits,

20 years credited service equalto § 5.46
per menth per year of service, with a
maximum of 30 years considered

Yes, 20 years credited service with
continued service for 30 or more years

Yes, if vested by 5/83
Yes
Yes
Yes
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4.A.2. COST-SHARING, MULTIPLE-EMPLOYER PLANS (continued)

Oklahoma Police Pension
and Retirement System

Required
Year End Contribution
June 30, 2013 $ 33,090.95
June 30, 2012 27,462.34
June 30, 2011 2527455
June 30, 2010 30,334.12

Oklahoma Firefighter’s Pension
and Retirement System

Percentage Required Percentage

Contributed Contribution Contributed
100 % 48,296,49 3 100%
100G % 51,169.12 100 %
100 % 38,662.03 100 %
100 % 39,513.38 100 %

Trend information showing the progress of the systems in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when due is
presented in the annual financial reports of the respective plans. Copies of these reports may be obtained from the

respective state retirement systems.

4,A.3. TERMINATION BENEFITS

At June 30, 2013, the City’s reporting entity had no terminated employees participating in COBRA
health care in various eptions available from the City. COBRA participants pay 100 % of the premium
cost for continuing coverage. COBRA continuation coverage benefits are available for eligible
emplioyees for 18 months. Dependents of employees who lose coverage due to a qualifying event are
eligible for 30 months. Benefits provided are not material to the financial statements.

4.B. RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, or destruction of assets; errors
and omissions; injuries to employees; employees’ health and life; and natural disasters.

The City manages these various risks of loss as follows:

Type of Loss

[ethod Managed

Risk of Loss Retained

a. General liability:
- Torts
- Brrors and omissions
- Police liability
- Vehicle
b. Physical property:
- Theft
- Damage to assets
- Natural disasters
c. Workers compensation:
- Employee injuries

d. Health and life:
- Medical
- Dental
- Vigion

Purchased commercial insurance

Purchased commercial insurance,
with a deductible of § 1,000

Purchased commercial insurance,
claims are administered by
CompSource Oklahoma

All group health and life coverage

is insured through commercial
insurance
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Deductible amount

Specific aggregate stop
loss coverage provided
by CompSource
Oklahoma
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4.B. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Management believes such coverage is sufficient to preclude any significant uninsured losses to the City. Settled
claims have not excesded this insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

4.C, COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

COMMITMENTS

Capital Leases

[ June 2009, the City entered into a lease purchase agreement with a local bank, for an ambulance. The lease
included 48 monthly payments of $ 2,480.08 each, which includes interest at 2 ¥4 %, and which terminate with
the fiscal year of the City (June 30.) The lease included three successive options to renew for one year, under the
same terms. This lease was paid off during the current year.

In May 2011, the City entered into a lease purchase agreement with a local bank, for a fire truck. The lease
includes 10 annual payments of § 22,491.86 each, which includes interest at 4 %, and which terminate with the

fiscal year of the City (June 30.) The lease included nine successive options to renew for one year, under the
same terms.

The annual lease payments are as follows:

Year ending

June 30 Fire Truck
2014 $ 22,491.86
2015 22,491.86
2016 22,491.86
2017 22.491.86
2018 22,491.86

2019-2023 67,475.58
Total 179,934 .88

Less mterest <28,514.02>
Net lease obligations $ 151,420.86

Grants

The City was approved, during & previous year, for a $ 30,000 grant under the Hazard Mitigation Grant
Program (HMGP) funded by FEMA, for the purchase of a natural gas generator for emergency operations of
the fire, ambulance, and emergency management departments. The grant called for matching on the City’s
behalf' of 25 % (or § 10,000.} As of June 30, 2011, no funds had been drawn under the grant, During the
previous year, the City expended $ 41,086.74 on the project and requested reimbursement of the total grant

amount, The City received the $ 30,000 during the current year. See the Schedule of Grant Funds for further
details.
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4.C. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (continued)

Subsequent to June 30, 2013, the City was approved for & § 395,001 Federal Aviation Administration grant
(FAA) through the United States Department of Transportation, for airport development, to rehabilitate the
apron and taxi lanes to the newly constructed hangar complex. The grant calls for matching funds on the
City’s behalf of § 43,889, No funds were received under the grant during the current year. See the Schedule
of Grant Funds for further details.

The City was approved for a § 2,500 grant from the Oklahoma Arts Council, funded by the Oklahoma
legislature through the Oklahoma Arts Council Small Grant Suppott Program, to help fund the Chandler Ice
Cream Festival. During the curvent year, the entire amount of the grant was drawn and expended. See the
Schedule of Grant Funds for further details.

The City was previously approved for a $ 466,779 Community Development Block Grant, Economic
Development Infrastructure Financing Agreement, funded by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development, passed through the Oklahoma Department of Commerce, for the construction of a building
and access road for a private business to provide jobs for low income individuals. The grant calls for the
private company to provide § 934,842 in matching funds. The funding period runs from June 17, 2011
through fune 17, 2014, As of June 30, 2012, $ 19,709.93 was drawn, and expended, under the grant. The
private company had provided § 714,842 in matching costs. During the current year, another $ 351,008.43
was drawn, and expended, under the grant. See the Schedule of Grant Funds for further details.

The City has been approved for a § 74,707 Community Development Block Grant, funded by the U.S,
Department of Housing and Urban Development, passed through the Oklahoma Department of Commerce,
to belp construct training classroom and living quarters in the existing fire station, The grant calls matching
funds on the City’s behalf of § 85,359, part of which will be provided by the REAP grant discussed in the
following paragraph. The funding period runs from May 24, 2013 through May 24, 2015. No funds were
received under the grant during the current year. See the Schedule of Grant Funds for further details,

The City has been approved for a § 74,707 Rural Economic Action Plan Grant (REAP) from the State of
Oklahoma, administered through the Central Oklahoma Economic Development District (COEDD) to help
construet training classroom and living quarters in the existing fire station. The funding period ran from
June 1, 2012, through June 30, 2013. No funds were received under the grant during the current year. See
the Schedule of Grant Funds {or further details.

During the current year, the City received a § 5,000 basic level grant from the Healthy Communities
Incentive Grants Program, funded through the Oklahoma Tobacco Settlement Endowment Trust Fund
(TSET) to help build benches and bleachers at the soccer fields. The funding period runs from May 24,

2013, through June 30, 2014, The $ 5,000 was received, and expended, during the current year. See the
Schedule of Grant Funds for further details.

The City was approved for a $ 3,000 Community Expansion of Nutritional Assistance grant (CENA) funded
by the Central Okiahoma Economic Development District — Area Agency on Aging (COEDD-AAAA) to
replace the carpet and repair the tile floor in the senior center. The funding period ran from July 1, 2012,
through June 30, 2013, The entire amount was expended during the current year, and the City had requested

reimbursement, which was received subsequent to June 30, 2013. See the Schedule of Grant Funds for
further details
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The City has been approved for a $ 6,000 Emergency Preparedness Planning grant, funded through the
Oklahoma State Department of Health, for help identifying healthcare planning priorities, enhance
communications, and enhance information sharing. The contract period ran from June 1, 2013, through June
30, 2013. The City requested, and was reimbursed, a total of § 5,000 during the current year. See the
Schedule of Grant Funds for further details.

The City was approved for a $ 8,403.75 Interoperable Emergency Communications grant, funded through
the Oklahoma Office of Homeland Security, Federal Emergency Management Administration, to purchase
narrow-band capable equipment. The project period ran from June 1, 2010, through April 30, 2013. The
grant required matching costs on the City’s behalf of $ 2,801.25. The entire amount of the grant and
matching costs were expended during the current year, and the City was reimbursed for the entire
$ 8,403.75. See the Schedule of Grant Funds for further details.

CONTINGENCIES

[ connection with the December 2007 ice storm, the City suffered significant damage. The City contracted
with an experienced monitoring company and an experienced storm debris collection company to clean up
the related debris. (The City also incurred approximately $ 50,000 in forced labor of City employees during
the clean up.) The original Project Worksheets prepared by FEMA shortly after the storm, indicated an
estimated expense on the City’s behalf of approximately $ 332,700. However, as the clean up progressed, it
was apparent that the scope of the damage, and the resulting expense to clean up the debris, was much
larger. When the work was completed, the Oklahoma Department of Emergency Management (OEM)
certified the actual cost of the cleanup at approximately $ 957,000, with which the City agreed, FEMA had
reimbursed the City as follows: approximately $§ 250,000 during the year ended June 30, 2008,
approximately § 45,000 during the year ended Juhe 30, 2009, and approximately $ 61,000 during the year
ended June 30, 2010, for a total of approximately $ 356,000, The City requested additional disaster
assistance from FEMA based on the completed Project Certification reports prepared by OEM, and was
denied. The City appealed that ruling with FEMA twice, and was denied on both appeals.

At the completion of the clean up, the City owed the two contractors approximately $ 835,000.During the
year ended June 30, 2009, approximately $ 181,000 was disbursed to the two contractors (in accordance
with the original Project Worksheets) from the funds already reimbursed by FEMA, leaving approximately
$ 654,000 due. One of the contractors was paid § 25,500 during the year ended June 30, 2011, in settlement
of their claim. The other contractor sued the City of Chandler (along with three other towns) in U.S. District
Court, for § 512,770.69 plus general and special damages for breach of contract. During a previous year, the
contractor and the City were ordered to undergo mediation. The City accrued a total of $ 219,320 in the June
30, 2011, financial statements. The claim was settled during the previous year for $ 197,986.66.

Grant Program Involvement

In the normal course of operations, the City participates in various federal or state grant/loan programs from
year {0 year. The grant/loan programs are often subject to additional audits by agents of the granting or
loaning agency, the purpose of which is to ensure compliance with the specific conditions of the grant or
loan. Any liability of reimbursement that may arise as a result of these audits cannot be reasonably
determined at this time, although it is believed the amount, if any, would not be material,
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4.C. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (continued)
Litigation

The City i3 a party to various legal proceedings that normally occur in the course of governmental
operations. The financia!l statements do not include any accruals or provisions for loss contingencies that

may result from these proceedings. State statutes provide for the levy of an ad valorem tax over a 3-year
period by a City “Sinking Fund” for the payment of any court assessed judgment rendered against the City.
While the outcome of the above noted proceedings cannot be predicted, due to the insurance coverage
maintained by the City and the State statute relating to judgments, the City feels that any settlement or

judgment not covered by insurance would not have a material adverse effect on the financial condition of
the City.

New Accounting Pronouncements

During the current period, the City implemented the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) Statement Number 62 — Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance
Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989, FASB and AICPA Pronouncements. The objective of GASB 62 is to
incorporate into the GASB’s authoritative literature certain accounting and financial reporting guidance that
is included in the following pronouncements issued on or before November 30, 1989, whick does not
conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements: Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
Statements and Interpretations; Accounting Principles Board Opinions; and Accounting Research Bulletin
of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants’ (AICPA) Committee on Accounting Procedures,
There were no significant changes to the financial statements as a result of implementing GASB 62.

During the current period, the City implemented the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASR) Statement Number 63 — Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred
Inflows of Resources and Net Position, The objective of GASB 63 is 1o provide guidance for reporting
deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources, and net position in a statement of financial
position and related disclosures. The adoption of the statement required the City to adopt the term “net
position” as required. In addition, the City determined that as of June 30, 2013, there were no items of
deferred outflows of resources or deferred inflows of resources, as presently defined, to be reported.

During the current period, the City adopted GASB Statement No. 65, ltems Previously Reported as Assets
and Liabilities (GASB 65), which amends or supersedes the accounting and financial reporting guidance for
certain items previously required to be reported as assets or liabilities. The objective is to either properly
classify certain items that were previously reported as assets and labilities as deferred outflows of resources
or deferred inflows of resources, or recognize certain items that were previously reported as assets and
liabilities as outflows of resources (expenses) or inflows of resources (revenues).

The following is a summary of the impact of the adoption of GASB 65 on the financial statements of the
Chandler Municipal Authority as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013, as previously reported.
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As previcusly
Reported Adjustments As Restated

Deferred financing costs, net 83,333.34 <83,333.34> -

Total 83,333.34 <83,333.34> -
Net position — beginning of year 3,537,557.27 <83,333.34>  3,454,223.93
Change in net position 636.523.13 - 636,523.13
Net position — end of year 4,174,080.40 <83,333.34 4,090,747.06

GASB issued Statement No. 67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans and Statement No. 68, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Pensions in June 2012 that are effective for financial statements for periods beginning
after June 135, 2013 and June 15, 2014, respectively. The City is in the process of evaluating the impact, if any
that will result from adopting GASB Statements No. 67 and No. 68.

4.D, SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events have been evaluated through October 14, 2014, which is the date the financial statements
were available to be issued.
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Bruce G. Luttrell, CPA, PC P.O Box 2173 ___Stillwater, OK 74076

Certified Public Accountant (405) 743-1040

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER
MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCTAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the City Council
Chandler, Oklahoma

I have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govermment Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Chandler,
Oklahoma, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the City of Chandler, Oklahoma’s, basic financial statements, and have issued my report
thereon dated October 14, 2014, The financial statements of the Chandler Community Development Trust
Authority were not audited in accordance with Govermment Auditing Standards, and accordingly, this report
does not include reporting on internal control over financial reporting or instances of repottable noncompliance
associated with the Chandler Community Development Trust Authority. My report included an explanatory

paragraph that stated management had not presented the budgetary comparison information to supplement the
financial statements,

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing my audit of the financial statements, I considered the City of Chandler, Oklahoma’s,
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing my opinions on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Chandler, Oklahoma’s, internal contrel.

Accordingly, T do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Chandler, Oklahoma’s, internal
centrol.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normat course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

My consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and was not designed to identify ali deficiencies in internal centrol that might be material weaknesses or,
significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during my audit I did not identify any deficiencies in internal

control that I consider to be material weaknesses, However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been
identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of cbtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Chandler, Qklahoma’s, financial statements
are free from material misstatement, I performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncormpliance with which could have a direct and material effect
on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of my audit and, accordingly, I do not express such an opinion. The results of

my tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of my testing of internal contro! and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing

Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose.

A S

Bruce G. Luttrell, CPA, PC

Qctober 14, 2014
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Bruce G. Luttrell CPA, PC P.O.Box 2173 Stillwater. QK 74076

Certified Public Accountant (405) 743-1040

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR
FACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR A-133

To the City Commission
City of Chandler, Oklahoma

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

[ have audited the City of Chandler, Oklahoma’s, compliance with the types of compliance requirements
described in the OMB Circular A~133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on
each of the City of Chandler, Oklahoma’s, major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2013. The City of
Chandler’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is respensible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants
applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on the City of Chandler’s compliance for each of the City of
Chandler, Oklahoma’s major federal programs based on my audit of the types of compliance requirements
referred to above. I conducted my audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States,
Local Governmenis, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that 1
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City of Chandler’s

compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as I considered necessary in the
circumstances.

I believe that my audit provides a reasonable basis for my opinion on compliance for each major federal
program. However, my audit does not provide a legal determination of the City of Chandler’s compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In my opinion, the City of Chandler complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs
for the year ended June 30, 2013.
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Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Management of the City of Chandler, Oklahoma, is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective
internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and
performing my audit of compliance, I considered the City of Chandler, Oklahoma’s internai control over
compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal
program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control
over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, I do not express an opinion on the
¢lfectiveness of the City of Chandler, Oklahoma’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a centrol over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program on a timely basis. A maferial weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasorable possibility that
material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or
detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over
compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance,

My consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify deficiencies in internal control over compliance that

might be material weakness or significant deficiencies. I did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over

compliance that I consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weakness may exist that have not been
identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of my testing of
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of OMB Circular A-
133, Accordingly, this veport is not suitable for any other purpose.

o <

Bruce G, Luttrell, CPA, PC

Qctober 14, 2014
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CITY OF CHANDLER

Chandier, Oklahoma

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

Federal Grantor/Pass Through
Grantor/Program Title Year

Federal
CFDA
Number

Amount of
Expenditures

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Passed through the Oklahoma Water
Resources Board

Cap Grants for State Revolving Fund
ORF-11-0011 DW 6-30-13
ORF-12-0016-CW 6-30-13

U.S. Department of Homeland Security
Passed through the Federal Emergency
Management Agency

Oklahoma Department of Homeland
Security
[nteroperable Emergency
Communications Grant
TECGP-Local-180,204 6-30-13

Passed through the Oklahoma Depariment
of Emergency Management

State-Local Disaster Assistance

Agreement
FEMA-1735-DR-OK(IIMGP) 6-30-13
FEMA-1833-DR-OK 6-30-13

U.S, Department of Housing and Urban Development
Passed through the Oklahema Department
of Commerce
CDBG-1458%ED&7 §-30-13

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards

66.468
66,458

97.055

97.039
97.036

14228

5 375,000.00
210,000.00

8,403.75

30,000.00
1,037.75

351,008.43

$ 975449393

Note A: Basis of Presentation - The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes the
federal grant activity of the City of Chandler and is presented under the accrual basis

of accounting.
Note B: There were no amounts passed to subrecipients.

Note C: Grantor provides adequate insurance coverage against loss on assets purchased with

Federal Awards.
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CITY OF CHANDLER
Chandler, Oklahoma

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

SECTIONT - SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Type of auditor’s report issued: Unqualified
Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified? No
Reportable condition(s} identified
not considered to be material weaknesses? None reported

Noncompliance material to financial

statements noted? No
FEDERAL AWARDS
Internal centrol over major programs;
Material weakness{es) identified? No
Reportable condition(s) identified
not considered to be material weaknesses? None reported

Type of auditor’s report issued on
corapliance for major programs: Unqualified

Any audit findings disclosed that are
required to be reported in accordance
with Circular A-133, Section .510(a)? None reported

Identification of major programs;

CEDA Number Name of Federal Program Expenditures
66.4638 Cap Grants for State Revolving Fund $  375,000.00
14.228 Community Development Block Grant 351,00843
Bollar threshold used to distinguish between
Type A and Type B programs; 5 300,000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? No

SECTION II - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

None

SECTION III - FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

None
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CITY OF CHANDLER
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2013

Exhibit 1
CAPITAL PROJECTS Total
FUNDS Nonmajor
Cemetery City Cap Governmental
Fund Fund Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 6858137 $ 130,83482 $ 19941599
Accounts receivable 31,25 18,193.38 18,224.64
Accrued interest raceivable 13.87 13.67
Inventory -
Total assets $ 6882629 $ 148,028.01 $ 217654.30
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 3 - $ 51,088.87 3 51,088.87
Total current tiabilities - 51,088.87 51,068.87
Noncurrent liabilities:
Payable fo other funds -
Less; current portion -
Total nencurrent liabllities - - -
Total liabilities - 51,068.87 51,0688.87
Fund Balance:
Reserved, reported in nonmajor
special revenue funds 68,626.28 97,95%.14 166,5856.43
Unreserved, reported in nonmajor
special revenue funds -
Total Fund Balance £8,626.28 97,959.14 166,585.43
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance S 8862629 $ 148,028.01 $  217,6854.30
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CITY OF CHANDLER
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2013

Exhibit 2
CAPITAL PROJECTS Total
FUNDS Nonmajor
Cemetery City Cap Governmental
Fund Fund Funds
Revenues:
Sales tax b - $ 6821091 b 68,210.91
Use tax 105,362.33 105,362.33
Cigarette tax 35,151.09 35,151.09
Grants .
Charge for services -
Miscellaneous 1,715.83 1,715.53
Investment income 418,44 418,44
Total Revenues 2,133.87 208,724.33 210,858.30
Expenditures:
General gevernment 3,382.01 3,382.01
Streets 47,000.00 47,000.00
Police 35,038.63 35,838.63
Fire 47.840.66 47,840.68
Ambudance 53,082.76 53,8682.78
l.ake 30,000.00 30,000.00
Golf 15,992,983 15,982 93
Water -
Wastewater -
Amortization -
Cemmunity Development Trust Authority -
Total Expenditures - 234 136.99 234,135,899
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expendituras 2,133.97 (25,412 66) (23,278.69)
Other financing sources (uses):
Operating transfers in - - -
Operating transfers out {3,750,00) - (3,790.00)
Total other financing sources (uses) (3,780.00) - (3,790.00)
Net change in fund balances (1,656.03) (25,412.66) {27,068.69)
Fund Balances - beginning 70,282.32 123,371.80 193,654.12
Fund Balances - ending $ 68,626.29 $ 97,859.14 $  166,585.43
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